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ANN ARBOR SCHOOLS
1824~1897

By Anna L. Clinton"

About the year 1800 the Ohio Surveyor General was delegated
to make a survey of Michigan and report to Cangress. He reported
that Michligan was a mass of lakes connected by swamps, that not
one acre in a hundred was fit for cultivation. Thils opinion was
spread abroad and prospective gettlers had no desire to come here,
although there was great unrest in the New England states becauss
of economic eonditions. The increase in immigration from Europe
made work scarce in the cities, and in the rural districts the
s0ll was worn out and there seemed no way to redeem it, After the
War of 1812, the soldiers who were mustered out at Detroit returned
to their homes bringing a different picture of Michigan., Settlers
again made plans to seek homes in the "Northwest."

One of these settlers wag John Allen, who left his family at
home in Virginia and started out alone. In Cleveland, he met and
made friends with Ellgha Rumsey and his wife, Ann. Allen's enthus-
lasm influenced them to travel with him, After a long and hazard-
ous Journey they reached the spot which 1s now Ann Arbor in the
spring of 1824,

Being men of great vislon and resolute character, they platted
a village bounded on the west by Allen's COreek, on the north by
the Huron River, and on the south and east by what are now Jefferson
and Division streets, Other settlers followed, and at the end of
the first year there were nine small homes; at the end of the second
year the population was more than 100,

A school was needed at once, and John Allen bullt one on the
northwest corner of Ann and iMain streets. It was bullt of logs,
had a low, wide door and several small windowe, one 8x8" pane of
glass in each. The furniture consisted of one chalr and a small
square table. The children's benches were made from split logs,
Miss Monroe, the first teacher, died in 1829, Miss Harriett
Parsons next took the school, and later became Mrs, Loren Mills.
Then followed Mlss Hope Johnson,

®iiss Clinton retired in 1939, after 48 years of continuous primary
teaching in Ann Arbor, GShe knows early Ann Arbor school days as
probably no one else in the city. Her mother, as a little girl of
two, was brought from Burlington, Vermont, to Ann Arbor in 1834, In
this small ploneer community the grandfather and grandmother were
"nele William and Aunt Mary" (Kearns) to everyone. So that the
little Anna grew up well acqualnted with all those long-ago school
people, either by her own knowledge or by familiar family tales of
the generation just passing.
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In 1829 a one-story brick school was bullt on the southwest
corner of Old Jall Square, where the Y.W.C.A., stands now. The
money for thls school was ralsed by subscription. The next year
the Supervisgsors added a second story to the school. The new room
was used as a Court room until the Court House was built in 1834,
It was alsgo used for religious meetings until the churches were
bullt.

A frame school was bullt by Asa Smith, a carpenter who had
come to the village in 1824 with his wife and children. This
school was on the northeast corner of Fifth Avenue and Washington
gtreet. This site was later used for a Congregational Church, and
now for the Zion Lutheran Church,

A school was held in the old liethodist Church which stood on
the southwest corner of Fifth Avenue and Ann 8treet. The Unitarian
Society used the building until their new church was recady, when
the old frame bullding was made into gpartments. Later 1t was torn
down to provide a parking lot for persons employed in the City Hall,

In 1846 a site for a Public School was purchased from
Nathaniel and Betsey Dwight for {$220. It was on the south side of
Kingsley Street (called North Strecet at that time) about & rods
vast of Detrolt Street. The school was brilt of brick, on two
floors, two large rooms on the first floor and one large room on
the second., I remember hearing the name of lary Ann Short as a
teacher there. When the new Fourth Ward School was finished in
1868, the old building was sold to St., Thomas Parish for $2100.
After spending $600 in repairs and $300 for furniture, Sisters were
brought from the Convent in Monroe, and a Cathollc School was con-
ducted in the old building until 1884, when their new building on
Elizabeth Street was finighed, Children were gradually drawn from
the public schools until, at the end of the second year, about
200 were enrolled, The old bullding was converted into a dwelling
which is still giving good service.

Private Privete schools were the first to offer instruction beyond
Schoolg clementary subjgcts.. The first of thesc was conducted by

the Rev, L. W. Merrill, in the Goodrich house¢ on what 1is
now Fourth Avenue, directly east of the Court Housc. He later
moved hig school to the west side of South Maln Strcet ncar Wash-
ington, He offered instruction in Latin and Greek as well as other
advanced subjects, After threc years, Rev, Merrill closcd his
school and moved to Kalemazoo, where he continued teaching,

A second private school, called "The Ann Arbor Academy," was
organized by a group of citizens in 1832, Rev, O, C. Thompson was
induced to give up hig work with the American Sunday School Union
and take charge of thd school, It was opcned in the Prcsbyterian
Church. There was a large enpollment, many students coming from
vhat were then considered long distances. One of the best known
was William Woodbridge, who became Governor of Michigan from
1840 to 1841,



3.

In 1836~1837 a school bullding was erected on the northwest
corner of Fourth Avenue and Willlam Street. As soon as 1t was com-
rleted, Rev, Thompson moved his school into the new bullding, but
conducted the school only 3% years longer., In later years this

tuiiding was known as "The 0ld Academy."

At this time a private school called the "Manual Labor School"
was organized, with Rev, Samuel Halr as Principal. It was a mile or
two east of the Court House on the south ¥psilanti Road. John Allen
szemned to have great interest in 1t. At first there were only a few
etudents but after two years was doing very well. The curriculum
included not only high school studies but also college subjects. A
year's tuition was 18.00, and as money was scarce many of the boys
worked on the farm to pay thelr way, making it truly a manual-labor
school, No girls were enrolled and as the number of bcys was never
enough to pay expenses, the school closed after all offorts were
exhausted., It had done excellent work for about 10 years.

In 1835, Mr, Luko Parsons opened a school called "High School
of Oral Instruction." It was located at first in W. C. Pcase's s%tore
bullding but moved to thc corner of Huron Street and Fourth Avenue.
He agreed to teach all common school branches, together with History,
Algcbra, Chemistry, Rhotoric, Logie, and llatural Philosophy, as well
as Latin and Greck. In an announcement of tultion the foliowlng was
quoted: $2.50 for Reading and Spelling, $3.00 for History, Gseography,
and Grammar, and $5.,00 for Geometry and Greck., Mr, Parsons seti
forth inducements couched in very learned and high-sounding phreses,
but perhaps they didn't "toke," for his school soon closcd.

During the same time Mr, Parsons! school was operating, another
was conducted on the 014 Jall Square by Mrs, B. F. Brown, G&he was
spoken of as a very good tcacher who insisted on lessons being pre-
pared and when neccessary found a ruler a help, 6&he moved her school
to the second floor of the Post Offlce bullding, on the northwcst
corner of Fourth Avenue and ann 8treet. (A feed store was there
when I was a child, the old mall boxes still lining the walls.)

Another school during these same years was opened by Mr,; and
Mrs, Henry A, Griffin, offering many inducements. They advertiged
they had a teacher who had had years of experience in "Female
Seminaries! in New England, also that Botany and Callsthenics would
be taught without extra charge. They carried on thls school until
1846, when their daughter and a Miss Johnson continued it. They
dropped some of the higher subjects formerly taught and gave mcre
attention to primary studles. These teachers were not popular and
the gchool closed arter 11 years of effort.

A school for girls was opened in 1836 by Mr. and Mrs, Gott.
That the giris in this achool were highly trained in patriotism and
power of expression was demonstrated by an essay entitled "Our
Country," written and delivered by lMiss MeCollum at commencement
exerclases in 1841, The essay 1s printed in full in O, W. Stephenson's
Ann_ Arbor the First Hundred Years, pages 105-106 (1927).




In 1841 lMr. G. Landreth had a school in the "01& Academy’
that lasted only one year. Another that lasted only a year was
taught in the basement of S8t. Andrews Church by Percival C. Milette,
Ee agreed to teach according to the most approved systems followed
in European colleges.

The next year, 1842, John Branigan opened a 8chool of Book-
keeping in the basement of 8t. andrews, for both boys and girils.
It was the first school of 1ts kind west of Detroit. It was a very
good school, but there was no demand for bookkeepers, as businesses
were small and each merchant was his own accountant, 8o this school
closed,

All these private schools had Boards of Vigitors who attended
the Friday reviews and exerclses and reported through the newspapers
the quality of the work they had observed. They usually pralsed the
ideals and abilities of the teachers. The schools vied with each
other to get members of the newly established Unlversity to serve on
thelr Boards of Visitors, That sometimes resulted in one man serv-
ing on the Board of several schools at the same time. One can
imagine what a tight place he was in, trying to be falr to all
without showlng partiality.

In 1844, a school similar to Gott's "Female Seminary" was

ogened by Eliza and lelanie Page with Lavina Moore as assistant., In

L5 the school was in the 014 Academy, but later was held in their
home, Mrs. Rebecca Hughes taught kusic and Drawing, and Adoni)ah
Welch (later to become the first Principal of the new Normal School
at Ypsilanti) taught Latin and lMathematics., The term was 22 weeks,
with tultion from $6 to {12, At one time there were 150 enrolled.
Miss Page made a st”ong plea for higher education for women,

In 1846, the annual exhibition was held in the Presbyterian
Church, All the girls were told to wear white dresses with blue
sashes draped over the shoulder diagonally, around the walst, and
tled in the back., The younger girls were to wear white pantelettes
to the ankle. A card showing her marks, good or bad, was pinned to
each girl's shoulder, so that the Board of Visltors could note the
standing of each., The school prospered until, at the close of the
Annual Exhibition in 1851, Miss Moore announced her resignation,
Miss Page tried to carry on but found herself unable to do so, and
discontinued the school., It is interesting to note the names of the
Visitors at this exhibition! Prof, Ten Brook, Prof. D. O. Wheeler,
Prof, A, P. Williams, Rev. Reed Curtis, Rev, Comstock Rev, C. C.
Taylor, Hon, Samuel Dexter, Dr., A. M. Ormsby, Alpheus Felch, and
Munnls Kenny.

In 1847 a school was conducted in the bascment of St, Andrew's
Church by Mrs., J. B. Smith and Miss Sally Plelds. Mrs. Rebecca
Hughes taught lMusic there, This school was suceceeded by one managed
by Mrs, Robert Woods; moved to a brick house at the north end of
Ingall Street; and lasted only a short time, Some of her girls
entered a school opened by Mrs, Cox on Huron Street. Others entered
lirs, Horatlo Van Cleve's aschool in a frame bullding oppositec the
Presbyterian Church,
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The private school which lasted the longest and congidered by
neny to be the most important was ~conducted from 1839 to 1875 by
the Clark sisters. The four sisters came to Michigan with their

father, an Episcopal clergyman, and after a brief stay in Brighton
moved o Ann Arhor. The older sisters had been educated at "Hiss
Willard'!'s School for Girls" in Troy, New York. They modeled their
school. after Miss Willard's even using the same tcxtbooks, They
brought with them the highest ideals and by instruction and cxample
immrossed these 1deals on their pupils.

Mary was striking in appearance ', and the moving power of the
school, Chloe was much like Mary in appearanco but a diffcorent
personality, very popular, though she took less responsibility.,

Roby was the housekeecper, known as Matron, later callcd Associate
Principal &lthough she t00k no part in the nanagcement of the school,
Jessic was a pupll in the school, a great favorite with all the girls
and of course a pet of her sistors. _

The school was first opencd in a brick building on north Hain
Street known as the Argus Block. Some timc after, it was at the
northeast corner of Fourth Avonue and Liberty Strecet. In Augus?t,
1841, it moved to thc Charles Fuller home, about where Secars,
Roebuck & Co.'s store now stands., Next 1t was at the southcast
corner of Huron and Ashley Strcets, opposite the bus terminal, in a
building used now for many years as a hotel, After 9 yecars there,
the school moved to the Shetterly house on Fourth Avenue, where the
sigters made thelr home.

Miss Clark started the school day by choosing a chapter from the
Bible and inviting each of the older girls to read g versei All
knelt while Miss Clark read a prayer and the group recited the Lord's
Prayer., The disciplinc of the school was strict but always dignified,
Some of the textbooks uscd were Willard's Universal History and
Republic of America, Burnctt's Geog raphy of thc ﬁEhvens Abercrombic'e
Intcllectual Powers, and Brocklesly's Meteorology.

The older girls weroc appointed Monitors. They taught the littlo
children and often helpcd with the housework. The Clark school gave
grecat attention to the proper dress as well as deportment for differ-
ent occasions, also the mcaning and pronunciation of Frcnch words
and phrases which the student might meet in soclety or recading.

Miss Clark was grecatly interested in Boteny, and this intercst was
reflccted in the students who lEped her mount spoecimens and mounted
somc of the familiar ones for themselves. They gatheéred rose petals
and lecarncd how to make rosc bowls, also how to make winter bouqucts
from geedcd grasscs from the garden, crystallized with salt and alum,
They published a 1little periodical callod The Wildflower, containing
some of their compositions, items of interost, and a great deal

about thoir botanical collections. Often in fino weather the class
in cmbroidery or scwing was taken to the gardoen where the class vas
conducted under the treces, A great decal of Importance was given to
memorizing of pocms sclected by Miss Clark. The students wore callcd
upon to rccite thesc when the Board of Visitors was prescent, Uy
mother often told us how thrillcd and heappy she was when a mcember of
the Board told her she had done well, 8She had rccoted "The Burlal
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of Sir John Moore," a sad recital, i1t secms, to bring happincse.

One of liiss Glark‘s habits which led to warm friendly rclations witl.
her pupils was that of talking long walks, in the course of which shc
often stopped at homes of her puplls to have a meal with the famil;".

The Shetterly home burned on July 4, 1865. The furniturc,
windows, end doors were saved and used in the new bullding ecrected
on the northwest corner of Division and Kingsley Streets, the funds
for which camc from fricnds and former pupils.

Commencencnt was held every year. Ilartha Ladd and Caroline
Cummings were thce first graduates. Iliss Clark and her scnilors were
attending Commencericnt ¢xerciscs in University Hall in 1875 when
her final illncss came upon her, The school was never opcned agaln
aftor her death., The sisters arc burled in Brighton Cemetery, the
graves marked by a gray granite stone ereccted by thelr former puplls.

One more private school nust be mentioned. In 1860, R. H.
Dunlap had a Commercial College in the Geer Block, on the west side
of north Fourth Avenuc, half way betwcen Ann and Catherine Stroets.

District In 1846 therec werec two school districts in the Upper
Schools Village of Ann Arbor: no, 11 to the north, mo. 12 south,

The 01d Academy was not profitable as a private school

80 was sold to District 12 for $900, It served as a
pudolic school until 1862, The last public school held there was
under the managemcnt of a Mr., Bassett, assistod by geveral young
ladics, assoclate tcachers. Distriet 12 sold the building for
81400, It was moved to north Fifth Avenue and used as a sash and
blind factory. Later it was sold to A. R, Schrnidt and moved to the
northcast corner of De¢trolt and Kingsley Strcets where it was used
as a snop for repalr of buggles. After standing idlc for somc ycars
it wvas torn down in 1933, and the timbers were salvaged for uscs
no% known to me.

Ubner After the Detroit and 8t, Joseph Railroad reached Ann
Viliage  Arbor, the population increased rapidly in both villages
Schools and a new interest in public schools developed, A Union

High School was voted for the Upper Village. All the

citizens realized something must be done but couldn!t
agree on how the problem should be solved, lMany wanted a school in
each district, but a strong group headed by John Allen advocated one
large sczhool, centrally located, to take care of all the children.
He argued that higher salaries could be paid and thus reduce the
coastens change of teachers, At this meeting he made the following
motcion, "It 1s not only the duty but the interest of the community
to sducate every child who is to become a member of soclety and
thereby we recommend to the next Leglslature of this State to pass a
law providing for this object."

Many meetings were held and finally a plan for a school in each
district was passed in 1847,
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A site for the Union High School was purchased from E, W.
Morgan for $2000, the sq.umare where the present High School stands,
“he buillding, which stood in the center of the block, was begun in
1&54 and finlshed in 1856, at a cost of $32,000. E, "B, Lawrence, a
Dlrector Bald in a nocwspaper article, "Tnere will be male and
feimale d@partmcnts in which young gentlemen may prepare for admis-
sion to the University, and young ladles receilve such instruction as
is afforded in the highest female seminaries." The cighth grade
was similarly divided

The first principal of the Union High School was Mr. L, C.
Abbot, Miss Merryless was the Preceptress. Two years later Mr,
Abbot and Migs llerryless married and moved to Lansing, where he
became president of lilchligan Agricultural College. Othcr early
teachers in this school were the Migses Abble Mize, Nettie Pellham,
and Anna Robinson. The school enrolled from first grade through
high school, end in less than 10 years the cnrollment increcased 100%.

Ward Meédtings woere held and nlans made to bulld schools in
Schoolg ecach of the Wards, First Sccond, Third, and Fourth, Tho
first of these was bullt in 1862 on the west side of
gsouth State Street, a few rods south of William Street,
It was a 2=story brick school, and the carctaker lived in the base-
ment. Later a 2-room addition was added to thc original four rooms.
Some of the teachers there were Miss Kerr, Principal, and the
lilsses McDwitt, Jewell, Ames, Hall, Eldridge, Gaffney, and MNrs,
Plympton who was Principal there before she was transferred to the
elghth grade in the High School building. irs. Plympton was follow-
ed by Miss Carrie Dicken, who went as Principal to Perry School
waen 1t was finighed in 190k,

After the University e_cquired the old school property, it was
uscd for classes until it was rcmoved to make room for Betsy Barbour
dormitory.

A gsmall brick school was bullt in Ward II at the corner of west
Jefferson and Fourth Strects. Four rooms werc added to the original
two. Among the carly tecchers here I remember liss Mary lMulholland,
Principal, Misses ilinnie Drake, Jullia Howard, Amcelia Lutz, Emilie
Gundert, and Miss Spoor, and later Miss Gundert was Principal, and
teachers under her were Emma Lutz Kirn, Emilie liarshke, lMary Fohay,
Minnie llogk, Augusta Walters, and Julia Kirchofcr,

The Marshall Company, that had bullt the Pirst Ward School,was
given a contract in 1866 to build the Third Ward School, for 36000,
It stood on the south side of Miller Avcnue a littlc west of
Fountain Streect, It was a Y-room brick building, with rooms for the
Janitor's family in the basement, Somctime after, 2 large rooms
were added, Some of the tecachers in this building were lirs. Hattile
Boyd Skinner, Principal, Miss Conwcll Miss Lovojoy, Misscs Emma
Bamriglg, Alficda Armstrong, Lator under lirs, Edson, Principal,
wore Miss Reade, and Missee Carric &rause Pauline Wurster, Jdary
Schlanderer, Enma Kapp, .Inez Crill, Matilda Pfisterer, Anna Mattison,
Zdith Stretch Sara Donnelly, Anna Clinton, Ina Wllson and !lary L,
Thompson, with Emma Weltbrecht, later Principal
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The Fourth Ward School was finished in 1868, It was a 6~-room,
street-level, brick building on north Division Strcet, on thc slte of
thac present Joncs School. This also had rooms for the Janitor to
live in the basemcnt. 1liss Lucy Chapin recallcd that she and her
brother, Volney, wecre among the flrst seventh graders to cnter the
building., The Frincipals I romember thore were Misses Annette Alles,
Watie Goodale, llae Ol!Heorn, and Winifred Gibbons, lrsg. Goodell
Whitlark, and lir., Wendell Vrceland.,

The Northside had Joined with the Upper Village, and after 1361
became Ward V. The Charter of 1867 added a Sixth Ward,

By the time thec ward schools wcre finished, morc space was
nceded, and an eddition was bullt on the Unlon School in 1870, sinil-
lar in appearance and size to the original school. The school was
then a square bullding in the center of tho block, with the Library
in a southwest corncr room, Iiiiss Nellic Loving was Librarian., The
two south rooms on the third floor houscd the cighth grade, under
Iliss Abble Pond and Miss Ellza Ladd as tcachcrs. liiss Alice Hunt
taught Drawing; lMiss Lucy Cole, Musiec.

In 1883 the Sixth Ward School, covering scven gradcs, was bullt
on the cast side of East University Avenuo, halfway betwecen North
and South Univerglty Avenues. The contract was given to Lucas &
Tessmer for $10,988, lMrs, Downs and Misg Harriet Cook were Princl-
pals there, while the Mlsses McCaln, Gunther, Sturgls, Rice, Feiner,
Alexander, liogk, and HMatie Cornwall taught there at different times,

In 1889 another addition was added to the High School which was
much more attractive in appearance, btinging the bullding out to
Huron Street., At that time we had Walter S. Perry as Superintendent
of Schools and Judson G. Pattengill as Principal. The Principal
taught Greek and Latin; Lucy A. Chittenden taught Rhetoric and
English Llterature; Horatio N. Chute, Physical Sciences; Benjamin E,
Nichols, Bookkeeping, Commercial Law, Political Economy, and Civil
Government; Miss Irls Carr assisted lir, Nichols; Levi D. Wines
taught Higher ifathematlics; Alice Porter, Latin; Mary L. Hunt, Natural
Science; Mary E. Dickey, German and French; Fred C, Clark, History;
Bertha Wright, General English; Louls P, Jocelyn, Mathematics; Roas
Cole, Grammar and Composition; and Mrs, H. Trucblood, Elocution,

This achool, under the leadership of ir, Perry and with the
g&sslstance of these able teachers, was one of the leading high
schools in the country. Its reputation brought families from great
distances to Ann Arbor that their children might be prepared for
entrance to the Unlversity, This helped to make the high school
cnrollment greater than it would have becn otherwise.
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Lower The Upper and Lower Villages were not yet unlted when
Village Angon Brown had dreams of promoting the Lower Village to

Schoolg make 1t the most important part of Ann Arbor. He built
a grist mill and the big brick stores on Broadway, had
himself appointed Postmaster, and moved the Post Office

to his bullding. He died in 1834, but his drcams carried on,

In 1838, Dr. Holmes conducted a school in the Baptist Church.
This was a frame bullding on the north silde of Wall Street about
ten rods east of Broadway. This school was called the "District
School" and received support from the village.

In 1840, a new brick school was built on the east silde of
Traver Street near the intersection of the Toledo and Ann Arbor
Rallroad. It had one story consisting of one large room that could
seat about forty pupils. The site was purcnased for {100 from
Caleb and Desire Ormsby. Dr, Holmes was the first teacher, and
after he resigned lirs, Annc Mudge took charge. It was sald of her
that she was very reserved and dignified, that while the chlldren
swept and dusted the school she changed from school attire, adjusted
her hat very carefully, and drew on long gloves bcfore appearing on
the street. (This teacher-attitude toward prsciseness of appearance
lasted for more than one generation.) The next teacher was lMilss
Celia Gilbgon. Early members of the Board of Directors were Joslah
Beckley, Robert Davidson, and Willlam R. Perry., Thls Board sold the
school property in 1856 to Jonathan Lund, for {150. It was con-
verted into a dwelling and 1s still serving as such.

Soon after the site for a Unlion High School was purchased in
the Upper Village, an agitation began for a Union School in the
Lower Village. Land was purchased from David Page and Caleb
Ormsby for $150. It conslsted of two village lots on the south
gide of Wall Street about 12 rods east of Broadway, A U~room brick
school was bullt in the center of the south 1line of the property
at a cogt of $3700,

Pergonal Baek in the 1890's i1t was not easy to get a position
gaching to teach in Ann Arbor schools, The applicant had to

Experienceg interview the members of the Board of Education in-
dividually. If she recelved any encouragement she
returned to Superintendent Perry, talked the matter

over and walted for the decislon of the Board., When the cholce was

made 1t was for a position as Cadet, This meant the applicant would
serve a year under the supervision of a fine teacher. The grade was
decided by Mr, Perry, who placed her in one best sulted to her per-

scnality. ©She was glven responglbllity for one section of the class.

She attended 2 one-=hour classes each week. Psychology and clags-

management were taught by Superintendent Psrry.

No salary was connected with the position of Cadet, If she
proved satisfactory she was given a positlion as teacher, if and
when an opnening occurred. There was one salary schedule for all
teacherg in the Elencntary School., They recelved $300 the first
yeaf% with annual incrcases of $25 until the maximum of (W00 was
reached,
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I was fortunate in being given the first grade in the Fifth
Ward, vacated by the resignation of lMigs Hattle Haviland, The
bullding was on a low foundation., Therce was no bascment, only a
hollow under my room filled with water in summer and ice in winter,
At the north side of the building there was a vestibule about &x20!.
On the sill of onc of the two windows was a hand-basin and soap,
with a roller-towel between window and door, On thc other window
sill was a water-pall with dippcr. PFrom this vestibule a H-foot
stalr led to thc upper floor. The first grade room was about 24xLO!
with two south windows, tgo west windows, and one on the north,

There were two long rows of double scats and two short rows.
At the end of the short rows the blg round oak stove stood, It was
cncased 1n a galvanized jacket, nuch like a furnace, only it was
open on top. Fresh alr was tlled 1n to an opening in the floor
under the stove, where 1t was heated and passcd out the top, thus
moking the temperature more or less cven throughout the room. The
thermostat was a 25c¢ thermometer with pad and pencil attached., It
was suspended from the ceiling in the center of the room, The
tecacher marked down the temperature cach hour, and was privileged to
carry in the chunks of wood when necessary to recplenish the fireo,
There were 2 chairs, a small table, and a blackboard., We didn't
nced much gtorage room becausc the only materials furnlshed by the
school were penmanship and drawing paper and letter cards. There
were no work books nor supplcmentary books thon.

Last and bost of all I found there 55 good-~looking, happy,
fun-loving children, whosc parcnts wore always rcady and willing
to help me,

Ann Arbor, lilchigan
Junc 1, 1951
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Hembership in the
WASHTZINAW HISTORICAL SOCIETY
1s open to any person interested in the historical background of the
Waghtenaw County area of lilchigan, upon payment of annual dues (1),

President - MMrs, Ray E. Spokes, 2010 Devonshire Road, Ann Arbor, llich.
Secretary-Treasurer - lirs. I. Wm, Groomes, 1209 5. State Street,

ann Arbor, Mich.
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